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New Titans into Bromley Garage 
recently have been allocated to 
routes 61, 126 and 138, replacmg 
Leyland Nat1onals, and much 
1mprovmg standards of comfort. 
Here at Bromley South we see 
T1121 on the 138 head1ng for 
Coney Hall, and T1117 1n 
Orpmgton on the 61 . Colin Fradd 



The conversion of route 118 to one-man operation was only 
possible after the construction of passing places alongside 
Commons1de East, M1tcham where the road IS very narrow. 
The places, known as hes1tat10n points, are marked by s1gns on 
lamp standards read1ng: "ROUTE 118 DRIVERS - CHECK 
ROAD AHEAD" . Here on a w1der section of the route we see 
BN's M1232 on 1ts way to Mitcham. Dav1d Bowker 

Tendering Results Announced 
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In April, route 196 was reallocated from Camberwell to 
Norwood garage, at the same time moving from Selkent 
District to Wandie . As a result, the service was converted from 
T to M operation, and here outside the new Norwood garage 
we see M1210. DaVId Bowker 

London Regional Transport has placed three-year contracts with five bus undertakings for the operation of 
twelve of the routes put out to competitive tender earlier this year. London buses retained only six services 
-84A, 152, 215, 228, 258 and H2, the remainder being shared between four other·operators. London 
Country Bus Services Ltd take the 313 and P4, Eastern National Omnibus Co. Ltd will work the 193 and 
W9, while private sector companies take one each-the 81 to Len Wright Travel who will trade as London 
Bus Lines, and the 146 to Crystal Coaches of Orpington. Tenders had been sought for a thirteenth route, the 
493 , but a decision has been deferred pending a more detailed review of the local bus network in the area. In 
the meantime, the service will continue to be worked by London Country Bus Services Ltd on the existing 
timetable . We shall be taking a more detailed look at these services in the next issue of LBM. 

£16 million order for London Buses 
London Buses has announced a £16 million order for 264new double-deck buses to be delivered during 
1986/ 7. The order has been won by Leyland for their Olympian vehicle, and meanwhile trials will continue 
on the vehicles submitted by four manufacturers to evaluate the best performance for a decision about the 
1987 orders. The new Olympian will feature ' split ' entrances and lower exit steps, thicker non-slip and better 
positioned handrails, and repositioned bell pushes with illuminated "Bus Stopping" signs. 

RM 1877 has acquired a 
livery variation to 
promote London 
Transport Advertising, 
the department within 
LRT responsible for 
sel ling advertising si tes 
commercially. These 
shots show clearly the 
striking broad white 
band . Colin Fradd 
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New West Croydon Bus Station opens 
The new bus station at West Croydon opened on 20th May and has met with a warm reaction from 
passengers and bus staff alike. The new bus station cost £1 · 6 million to build and will be used by 2 · 5 million 
passengers a year. It featured an enclosed waiting area, similar to that at Harrow, seating for queue areas, a 
fast-food restaurant, a public address system, underfloor heating, toilets and automatic doors. 

An improved bus stand at Finsbury Park too! 
The bus terminus in Station Place, Finsbury Park has at last been transformed into a modern parking area 
with room for more buses. This forms part of the station rebuilding work which is still continuing, and 
utilises land which has been derelict for many years. The bus stand is used by buses on routes 4, 19, 106, 230 
and 236, and means that the old stand in a narrow residential street at Plimsoll Road can also be taken out 
of use. 

On stand at the new West 
Croydon Bus Station, we 
see consecutive Ms 1166 
and 1167 on the 130B and 
130, both bound for New 
Addington. Malcolm E. 
Papes 

On the last day of 
operat1on of route 234. 
before 1ts replacement by 
an extens1on of the 127, 
Croydon worked M 1200 on 
the route usmg spe.cially 
adapted DM S blinds as 
shown here at Purley. In 
ant1c1pat1on of the changes 
route 234 was omitted from 
the Metrobus blinds bemg 
del1vered at that time. Colin 
Fradd 
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The peak hour express workings on the 130 group , with their yellow blinds, are illustrated here by M1201 at East Croydon Station , while the 
new order for route 157, to be followed shortly by the Merton allocation , is shown by M1164 at Wallington . Colin Fradd 

New rou tes in Selkent Distr ict saw a link to Aldgate (for Petticoat Lane Market) on Sundays provided by part of the 47 renumbered 47A. 
The weekday service only as far as Surrey Docks is to be replaced la ter this year, and here we see T1123displaying Aldgate via Tower Bridge. 
Part of the Saturday shopping service on the 185 between Lewisham and Camberwell was extended to Elephant and renumbered 185A as 
shown by T8541eaving Lewisham Bus Station . Quite why the number 176was not used , of wh ich this would have simply been an extension, 
is uncertain . Malcolm E. Papes!Colin Fradd 

Left: Another new route. on Sundays only, is the 194A replacing the 194 and providing a Sunday service to the Shrublands Estate for the 
first time. Although a separate number is used, because the service runs via Shirley Way, it serves for both the Shrublands and Forest Hill 
services, and the 194 family continues to be as confusing as it has always been. Here in Shirley we see DMS2265 before the expected 
conversion to LS later on. Right: On Sundays, the 75was reallocated from Cat ford to Eimers End garage, at the same time revert ing to OM S 
operation . Again, this service is likely to become LS on Sundays, so reducing the attraction of a Sunday bus ride out to Blackheath perhaps. 
David Bowker!Maicolm E. Papes 
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LRT Subsidiaries formed 
Three new companies were established on I st April under the London Regional Transport Act 1984; 
London Buses Ltd now operate London's red bus fleet, London Underground Ltd provide the capital's 
underground network, and LRT Bus Engineering Ltd provide engineering and overhaul facilities, 
principally for London Buses Ltd but also for other customers. The three new companies join London 
Transport International, which provides a world-wide Consultancy service, as wholly owned subsidiaries of 
London Regional Transport. 

Airbus success 
LRT has said that during 1984 over 900 000 passengers used London Buses' three Airbus services, an 
increase of 13 per cent over the previous year. However, in order to combat increased costs, from 30th 
March adult fares were increased from £2· 50 to £3 (child from £1 to£!· 50). Fares in other currencies were 
also increased except for those paid in Canadian or US dollars, which remain at five and four dollars 
respectively. The announcement did not give any indication of how many of Airbus passengers have 
transferred away from the underground . 

Thames Barrier Shuttle Buses 
Selkent District are again running their shuttle bus from Greenwich to the Thames Barrier this summer. Last 
year over 34,000 people used the service and this year it is hoped to double that number . This year, for the 
first time, there is also a daily fast service from Victoria to Greenwich and the Barrier Centre using TE 
vehicles. 

The long-standmg Inter-Station N1ght Bus 
was finally withdrawn 1n Apnl and 
replaced by conventional style serv1ces. On 
14th/15th April New Cross used an RM 1n 

place of the scheduled crew T1tan, f1tted 
with blinds wh1ch were Intended for use 1n 

the earlier DMS types. RM1940, 
one of the declming Leylands, picks up 
passengers here at the very old bus stop at 
Waterloo taxi road which has smce been 
replaced by a conventional bus stop. 
Paul Carpenter 

Below: The replacement for the Inter 
StatiOn bus provided an hourly serv1ce 
between King's Cross and Ladbroke Grove 
serv1ng most of the main l1ne stations and 
Trafalgar Square en route. Here at 
Victoria we see M895 with the interesting 
blind arrangement. The Ra1la1r Link 556 was 
renumbered N56 at the same time, and 
also extended to King's Cross to f1ll the 
meal break gap of the N50/ N51 . Here at 
Euston M 1168 wa1ts for passengers from 1ts 
scheduled tram connection from 
Birmingham. David Bowker 
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Even more areas now served by Night Buses 
Further expansion of the Night Bus network came into operation on 27th April. For the first time night 
buses now serve Barnes, Bethnal Green, Harrow, Kingston, Ladbroke Grove, Mitcham, Morden, 
Stanmore, Sutton, Twickenham and Wimbledon. A new edition of the popular Night Owl's Guide is now 
available and includes details of all last bus and rail services correct to 15th May. 

More LRT routes put out to tender 
About 40 services are likely to be involved in the next stage of route tendering announced by London 
Regional Transport. Ten routes will go out to competitive tender immediately-the 79A, 125, 127/ A, 145, 
179, 195, 200, 268, 275 and 283. Tenders are being invited based on the existing levels of service, but in many 
cases prospective contractors are being invited to put in a separate alternative tender to include service 
improvements such as higher frequencies. On the 268 and 283 alternative proposals are being sought 
involving a more frequent service using smaller buses . 

In the autumn tenders will be sought for services which operate into the counties of Surrey and Hertford­
shire. Surveys are currently being carried out to determine, in conjunction with the County Councils, the 
exact service specifications. Services operating in the Orpington area will also be put out to tender in the 
autumn, after completion of a review to determine a new route pattern. The London Borough of Bromley 
and Kent County Council will be consulted about the new network before tenders are sought. 

Yet more omo on London Buses 
Further omo conversions in August will mean an increase of three per cent to 62 per cent of the fleet. Some 
busy central London and inner suburban routes will be converted at this time, and the main routes involved 
are •• 45, 48, 71, 77A, 180 and 243/ A, along with part of routes 74 and 279/A. Further omo in November is 
expected to see the conversion of route 5, 40, 41, 63, 133 and 266, and part of the 113. 

Garage closures confirmed 
It is now confirmed that Battersea, Poplar and Walworth garages are to close after 1st November . Services 
at Battersea are expected to go into Victoria and Wandsworth, while those from Walworth are likely to be 
moved to Camberwell, New Cross and Peckham. Poplar routes will probably go to Bow, Camberwell, 
Clapton and West Ham. Edmonton garage will close early next year, while that of Southall is dependent on 
the completion of the rebuilding of Han well, but it will not be before 1987. 

Minister closes bus lane 
The Department of Transport has turned down a GLC request to safeguard the continued operation of the 
bus lane in Tottenham High Road. The powers which allowed the bus lane to operate expired on 25th 
March, and the Secretary of State for Transport, Nicholas Ridley, has told GLC transport committee chair­
man Dave Wetzel that the DTp will not agree to the renewal. The bus lane which had the support of LRT, 
Haringey Council and the Metropolitan Police, had been working experimentally since September 1983. 
The GLC gave the go-ahead last December for the scheme to be made permanent, but because the lane is on 
a trunk road the consent of the Secretary of State for Transport is needed. 

Bus of the Future to appear soon 
London's bus of the future was unveiled during May following eighteen months of detailed research and 
trials by automotive specialists Ogle Design. One Fleetline bus, to be converted to include many of the new 
features, will take part in a trial in passenger service shortly. A full size mock-up of the bus was built in 
Ogle's Letchworth works. The design team then went to the local job centre and an old people's day centre 
to seek out volunteers, representing a cross-section of passengers, to try out the new features. At the same 
time, Ogle researchers quizzed bus crews, Chiswick driving instructors, bus builders, associations of the 
disabled and passenger representatives. 

Visitor's Guide to Central London 
A new map has been issued by LRT for tourists in three versions-English, French and German. It gives 
much information about the underground, places of interest, special tickets and Sightseeing and Guided 
tours, but the information on London buses is a little sparse. The bus map shows 23 'key' routes, in the 
familiar 'bubble' style, but quite how these key routes are derived is unclear. Many of those in the West End 
are omitted-2/B, 8, 13, 25, 27, 36/B and 38, despite them serving and linking up some important locations. 
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London Transport 's 
Tours and Charter 
Department are using 
thiS OAF coach wh1ch 
has been class1f1ed 
TC1 . Its mainly white 
livery carnes four 
coloured bands - m 
red , yellow, green and 
blue- beneath the 
windows, and 1t rests 
here outs1de V1ctona 
StatiOn . Colin Fradd 

More Olymp1an 
coaches have been 
delivered to London 
Country and these 
were qu1ckly pressed 
into serv1ce onto the 
increasingly popular 
Flight line 757 to Luton . 
LRCB from St. Albans 
garage was caught 
here at Marble Arch. 
Richard Godfrey 



London Transport at War 
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Our report 1n the last 
issue on new coach 
dellvenes for London 
Country referred to 
certam llvenes wh1ch 
were not available for 
illustratiOn at the lime . 
BTL 16 1n Hoverspeed 
livery of white with red 
and blue stnpes IS seen 
here at North fleet 
garage, while BTL 15 
carries Fllghtline 777 
l1very of two-tone 
green and yellow here 
at Crawley . Richard 
Godfrey 

Bombs and privations failed to stop London's buses and underground trains serving the public in two World 
Wars and making important contributions to victory. The role of London Transport In wartime can be seen 
at a new exhibition at the London Transport Museum in Covent Garden until 27th November. On display 
are bombs of various types from both wars, some of the vehicles that helped to keep London moving and 
other reminders of those dark days . Vehicles specially on show include a bus in Second World War 
condition, complete with masked headlamps and anti-blast window netting, and a Guy Arab "Utility" bus 
built for L Tat the same time. Equipment displayed includes gas masks, blackout lamps, along with models, 
uniforms, photographs and posters to help bring back the atmosphere of that time. There is also a Second 
World War newsreel featuring tube shelterers and the training of women conductors. 

London Bus Rally at Chiswick 
At the time of going to press, plans were being prepared to hold the London Bus Rally at Chiswick this year 
on Sunday II th August. It will be open from II am to 4pm and the usual attractions will be on show including 
'Drive-a-bus', flea market and refreshment facilities . 
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... said the posters and advertisements plastered over buses, bus stops and shelters at the end of last year in an 
attempt to promote route 23 as a major tourist service. It did, after all, serve a number of important points through 
central London-The Tower of London, Monument, Mansion House, St. Paul 's Cathedral, Fleet Street , Law 
Courts, Trafalgar Square, Piccadilly Circus, Oxford Street and Marble Arch. Buses on the route from Upton Park 
garage carried striking yellow, red and blue vinyl side, front and rear adverts, and inside the buses a diagram of the 
route was posted with the heading "Get to know routes 15 and 23". Bus stops along the route had the 23 stickers 
replaced with a blue and yellow version, sometimes reading "For the Tower" or "For the West End" in red if 
space permitted. The shelter at the Tower of London had a special construction on top in yellow, reading "Route 
23 For the West End" on the ends, and "For Trafalgar Square and Piccadilly Circus" along the sides. 

It could have been expected to be an excellent promotion, at least making potential passengers aware of the 
route if nothing else. Presumably it was successful in attracting custom as plans were formulated at the beginning 
of this year to increase the service to the Tower from 27th April by withdrawing route 15 (via Bank) at off-peak 
times and on Saturdays and Sundays, and diverting these buses instead under the 23 number to serve the Tower. 

However, it became clear during early April that all was not to be that simple. It is claimed that passengers did 
not like the 23 route number, and preferred to travel by route 15, lettering the 23s go by. So as time went by, the 
plans changed, and the improvements to the Tower service had to be delayed by three weeks to 18th May. In order 
to satisfy the passengers' preference for the 15 number, it was later intended that the entire service, both via Bank 
and via Tower would carry the 15 number, individual journeys being distinguished by the intermediate blind 
and/ or destination display. This, however, would not have been acceptable from the staff viewpoint, and so it was 
decided to separate the two routes, the Bank service running all day on Mondays to Fridays using a different 
number. The number chosen for the main Tower service was to become 15, and the Bank service as a result was 
renumbered 15A. 

And so the promotion changed, the new slogan being "Get to know bus 15" , this time accompanied by leaflets, 
stickers, and even a selection of new vehicle liveries. The route stickers on bus stops and the shelter at the Tower 
were, of course, changed as appropriate, and a local news leaflet was produced in yellow and blue for house-to­
house distribution which explained the changes and gave details of the first and last buses. It gave the reason for 
the change of route numbers as being 'to help you identify which are which', but one feels inclined to ask whether 
the difference between numbers 15 and 15A is really more helpful than the old numbers 15 and 23 . The bus blinds 
were revised to blue and yellow, the top part reading either '15 VIA TOWER' or ' 15A VIA BANK' in blue on 
yellow, while the remainder of the blind read 'St. Paul's Trafalgar Sq Oxford Street Paddington' in two lines in 
yellow on blue. Even this is surprising on two counts. Firstly, from a distance the blinds look similar and it is not 
immediately obvious whether the it is a BANK bus or a TOWER bus. Perhaps the 15A would have been better 
suited to the old white on black blinds? But secondly, despite the lessons presumed to have been learned on night 
bus blinds whereby, again at a distance, black lettering on yellow is not clearly legible (and night bus blinds are now 
being changed to yellow on black), the most important part of the blind, BANK or TOWER, is in blue on yellow. 

As for liveries, at least two buses are known to have carried aJivery of red with a yellow waistband and yellow roof, 
RMLs 893 and 2523. This was quickly superseded by a yellow waistband with a yellow stripe above the upper deck 
windows, but some buses, not all as promised on publicity, just carry a yellow waistband. Vinyl stickers are being 
affixed to the front and rear of the buses which on the left read 'route 15' with a very small 15A number tucked 
away in the corner, and on the right 'Oxford Street and The Tower (15)'. No special vinyl adverts are carried along 
the sides. 

One particularly interesting item of publicity was the 'Route 15 guide' issued to conductors. Printed in blue and 
yellow, it gives a diagram of the central London portion of the route (Ladbroke Grove and East London 
passengers may well feel forgotten!) along with a list of important locations with very detailed descriptions of those 
places. On the back is a list of questions the average tourist may ask (like 'what are you doing tonight?') and useful 
phrases for the conductor (like ' I love you too!'), all in English, French and German! At least someone has a sense 
of humour- conductors with a full bus through the West End on a busy summer Saturday are bound to have time 
to read their pocket phrase book! 
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Get to know bus routes 15 and 23 

5 ~~ 23 ~ 
e~ ~~ _,. 

r~rz~[ ~~-o/ ~ .... ouno 
f.U:U.ONE o~ o~ f.U.tZON£ fo\AlZON( 

Above: The westbound bus stop at the Tower is seen just before the changes, with route 23 to the West End stickers both on the flag and the shelter. 
For a very short time, the first bus to carry the new yellow roof and waistband livery, RML2523, also retained the special route 23 advertisements as 
seen here at the Tower . Dick Mosehng 

This rear shot of 
RML2496 clearly shows 
the advertisements 
either side of the blind 
box, also carried on the 
front , taken in the 
Strand on 28th May 
1985. Cohn Fradd 
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Above: 
R M L2738 here 
in Minories 
demonstrates 
the yellow 
stripe livery 
above the 
upper deck 
windows, while 
at Aldwych 
R M L893 heads 
for Ladbroke 
Grove on the 
15A. Colin 
Fradd 

Right : The 
Route 15 Guide 
issued to 
conductors. 
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The 59 Story 
Part Two 

Compiled by Alistair J. Duffus 
from material supplied by 

George Robbins and Colin Stannard 

In this shot of ST1028 arriving 
at Coulsdon. route boards are 
still carried. The veh1cle was 
acquired from Chariot Omn1bus 
Co. J.F. Higham 

The renumbering of the services on 3rd October 1934 was the point at which we left the first part of this story, and 
to summarize, the schedules at this date were as follows: 

Number of buses 
Route Terminals Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
59 Camden Town- Chipstead Valley Road TC STL 37 37 29 

(via London Road) ST 10 5 
AK LT 9 10 10 

!59 Oxford Circus - Thornton Heath (via Green Lane), TC 10 10 15 
extended Mon-Sat to Camden Town, p ST 11 8 
extended Sat-Sun to South Croydon AK LT 7 

On 31st October both the 59 and 159 were diverted intermediately at Parliament Street via Parliament Square 
(east side), return via south, west and north sides, Abingdon Street, Millbank and over the new Lambeth Bridge 
and on to Lambeth Road. 

Traffic congestion was already starting to disrupt the schedules, and from 29th April 1936 the 59 was 
sectionalized on Mondays to Saturdays to run from Camden Town to Coulsdon Red Lion, and from Thornton 
Heath Pond to Chipstead Valley Road. A further section was introduced between Camden Town and Croydon 
Airport, but as it diverged from the main route at Thornton Heath Pond via Purley Way, it was renumbered 59 A. 
TC provided 18 STs on Mondays to Fridays reducing to 15 on Saturdays. Its allocation on the !59 became Sundays 
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only. To balance, AK ceased to work on the 59 on Mondays to Saturdays, its buses being transferred to the 159. 
The P allocation on the 159 had been removed on II th September 1935 in favour of Q, and by the time of these 
changes Q worked just 7 STs on the 159 on Saturdays only. 

Some terminal alterations took place soon after , and from 9th September 1936 the Saturday afternoon and 
Sunday 159 terminus was moved from the Swan & Sugar Loaf to the Garage in South Croydon. On 28th May 1937 
the Saturday p.m. service was cut back from Camden Town to Oxford Circus, whilst from 23rd February 1938 a 
further change was made to the 159 on Sundays when the southern terminus reverted to the Swan & Sugar Loaf 
once again. Throughout this time, however, some Sunday buses worked to and from Croydon garage to finish and 
take up service. 

On 5th January 1938 the 59A was rerouted via St. James Road to Addiscombe Black Horse on weekdays 
replacing the 133A (Liverpool Street to Addiscombe) . The service to Croydon Airport was covered by an extension 
of the 115 from Streatham. Changes were also made to the sectional working of the 59. The northern section was 
reduced to run during weekday peak hours only between Camden Town and Croydon Garage, and the Thornton 
Heath to Chipstead Valley Road section was increased from a ten to a six minute headway. This, however, was 
found to be more frequent than the traffic warranted for the Coulsdon to Chipstead Valley Road part of the 

ST839 from TC glistens after 
repaint. This ex-Tilling Regen t 
had its body rebuilt and various 
modifications can be picked 
out compared with ST979 
which, in its un-rebuilt form, is 
bound for Addiscombe . 
D. W. K. Jones 
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The standard Renown 
1n pre-war days IS 
represented here by 
l T215 from AK . 
D. W. K. Jones 

STL553 from TC was 
one of Chas. Pickup's 
AECs wh1ch the Board 
had f1tted with an 
upper deck roof, and 
the pillars d1d not line 
up w1th those on the 
lower deck. D. W. K. 
Jones 

service, and so on 4th January 1939 a new weekday route 59B was introduced between Thornton Heath Pond and 
Coulsdon. The route followed a circular run at its terminus, rather unusual for a London bus route, which took 
buses from Brighton Road near Stoats Nest Road via country route 409 to Old Coulsdon, returning via Marlpit 
Lane to rejoin the main 59 route at Coulsdon. This opened up a new area of housing to buses. This circular 
routeing was abandoned from 22nd April 1942 when buses in both directions ran via Marlpit Lane. 

At this time the 59 ran the full route between Camden Town and Chipstead Valley Road only on Sundays, and 
the 59 only ever reached central London on Sundays and during Monday to Friday peak hours. However, from the 
introduction of the 59B two early morning journeys worked from Coulsdon to Camden Town via the 59 on 
Mondays to Fridays. 
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Many alterations took place from 22nd November 1939 to effect wartime economies. The Monday to Friday 
peak hour journeys on the 59 and 59B to Camden Town were withdrawn, and the 59B was withdrawn during 
evenings. On Saturdays, the !59 ran to Camden Town all day once again but the Sunday workings between Oxford 
Circus and Streatham Common were withdrawn. The southern terminus was rationalized to Croydon garage . 
Monday to Friday evening journeys were extended from Thornton Heath to Croydon garage although the 
Camden Town to Streatham section was withdrawn. On 22nd March 1940 the 159 was extended on Sundays from 
South Croydon to Chipstead Valley Road to supplement the 59 on that day, but as a further economy, between 
April 1941 and April 1945, this extension was run only on Sunday afternoons. Stock changes suggest that at least 
some of these cuts must have taken place earlier than 22nd November, but it is likely that the true picture in these 
confused times will never be known. The changes in allocation over this period is best shown by comparing the 
schedules for June and December 1939: 

JUNE 1939 DECEMBER 1939 
Number of buses Number of buses 

Route Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
59/B TC ST 25 

TC STL 15 25 TC STL 14 13 
59 TC STL 25 TC STL 10 

AK LT 15 AK STL 10 
59 A AK LT 20 13 

AK ST 4 
TC STL 15 5 
Q STL 13 

159 AK LT 17 AK STL 26 30 7 
AK ST 22 18 
Q STL 17 
TC ST 15 

It can be seen that the maximum of 84 buses on Mondays to Fridays in June had been reduced to just 55 by 
December. The STs were withdrawn completely, and more especially the ex-Tillings which had been the mainstay 
of the TC fleet. AK also replaced its L Ts with STLs although the L Ts did return briefly in the spring of 1942 in an 
exchange with N . Ex-LGOC petrol STLs moved into TC who lost operation on the 59 and 159, but took over 
instead the 59 A with some help on Saturdays from Q who in turn lost all its duties on the 159. AK's main work was 
now limited to the 159 with only some Sunday duties on the 59. As was widely the case, the reductions were found 
to be too severe, and from 3rd January 1940 TC introduced 13 STLs on Mondays to Fridays and five on Saturdays 
onto the 159 in addition to the AK allocation. Fluctuations of both numbers of vehicles and garages took place 
throughout the war at short notice. On 20th March 1940 further adjustments saw TC removed from the 59A with 
Q taking over, with five extra STLs from AK on Saturdays. AK now gave up work on the !59 on Sundays in favour 
of TC who now shared the 59 with AK on that day. By June 1941 vehicle shortages meant that STs were brought 
back into service mainly for the 59 and 59B from TC, although by 6th October examples were scheduled on the !59 
on Mondays to Fridays. From 28th October 1942 TC started to work ten buses on the 59A, STLs at first but 
rapidly replaced by STs. On 21st April1943 TC was removed from the !59 leaving a larger allocation for AK, but 
on Sundays Q provided a mixed ST/ STL allocation of II buses. This was also short-lived and the final outcome 
can be seen in the allocations for 9th January 1946: 

Number of buses 
Route Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
59/ B TC ST 16 16 
59 TC STL 10 

AK STL 10 
59 A Q STL 29 12 

AK STL 6 
159 AK STL 36 27 

TC STL II 
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This photo of TC's ST26 at Thornton Heath 
Pond shows the wartime wmdow nett1ng 
and boarded wmdow I glass was not easy 
to acqUire) on route 598 . W.J Haynes 

Below left: The replacement of the L Ts at 
Streatham was helped by STL450. To 
conserve fuel, 1t lays over on the 
Embankment near Lambeth Bndge before It 
takes up evenmg peak hour dut1es, and 
demonstrates the absence of a cab door on 
these veh1cles. W.J Haynes 

Below: STL553 on route 59A 1n wartime 
garb shows the contmued use of the 
ex-Pickup buses at a time when many 
non-standard veh1cles were withdrawn. 
W. J Haynes 

Two interesting aspects of wartime operation affected the 159 during the earlier war period. In the autumn of 
1940, so many buses were off the road that London Transport had to borrow buses from the provinces. 
Allocations for 20th November 1940 show five provincial buses operating alongside the STLs from AK on 
Mondays to Fridays. The actual vehicles changed but the following were working at that time: 

FW1216 on loan from Cleethorpes 
VR5470 on loan from Manchester Corporation 
VR6005 on loan from Manchester Corporation 
UG1051 on loan from Leeds 
GW738 on loan from Youngs (a former London TD class bus) 

These provincial buses had disappeared from the schedules for 2nd April 1941. 
The 159 also operated Express buses at this time. From 4th November 1940 until 19th March 1941 ten peak hour 

buses (STLs from AK) ran from Charing Cross to Streatham Hill Station stopping only at Thames House, Brixton 
and Telford Avenue. The buses then continued on as normal observing all stops to Thornton Heath. As elsewhere 
in London, the Express buses were not to prove successful. 

On the night of 10/ 11th May 1941 Croydon garage was completely burnt out following an air raid. Many buses 
were damaged but 56 were destroyed completely. Among the casualties were three Tilling STs, 24 Tilling STLs, 10 
LGOC and 23 later type STLs, and one former Pickup STL. Three loaned Manchester Corporation Crossleys were 
also destroyed. The next day saw a massive replacement programme using STLs from many other garages, and a 
large number of STs were brought back into service. 

From 5th May 1943 all Sunday morning services on Country routes were withdrawn; this did not extend to red 
buses except where such services penetrated the Country area some distance such as the 159 beyond Croydon. 1945 
saw the war entering its final phase and on 6th May the Sunday morning service was reintroduced on the southern 
section of the 159. As far as possible, other restrictions were eased too. Service changes were non-existent and it 
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was not until 13th October 1946 that the 159 was diverted from Chipstead Valley Road to Old Coulsdon on 
Sundays giving Mead way a service for the first time on that day. 

Perhaps the most surprising alteration occurred on 12th November 1947 when the northern sections of the 59, 
59A and 159 were diverted at Oxford Circus via Oxford Street, Baker Street and St. John's Wood to West 
Hampstead West End Green . The 59 A terminated at Sherriff Road . The route's former routeing to Camden Town 
was replaced by the diversion of the old-established 53A away from West Hampstead. The reason for this 
exchange is quoted as being for convenience of operation . Half of the 53 A continued to run to West Hampstead 
but these journeys were renumbered !53, reviving the use of the pre-War number, albeit not serving Marylebone 
High Street as the previous !53 had done . These changes brought P garage back to the !59 using 18 LTs previously 
on the 53A, in addition to the STLs from AK. 

For several years, intending passengers had been confused by the various sections of the 59 family, and in an 
attempt to aid recognition the weekday sections were renumbered from 7th April 1948; the 59 section between 
Thornton Heath Pond and Chipstead Valley became 166, and the section of the 59B between Thornton Heath 
Pond and Old Coulsdon became 166A. Thus, the 59 itself became a Sunday-only service. The 166 was extended to 
open up a new bus link from 21st February 1951 running via London Road, Galpins Road, South Lodge Avenue 
and then via Streatham Vale over route 118 to terminate at Streatham Common. This new extension was to be 
unserved on Sundays. This extension was to be short-lived however. On 8th April 1951 new bus route 190 was 
introduced between Thornton Heath High Street and Croydon Coombe Road replacing Tram route 42. On 22nd 
October of the following year the 166A was withdrawn and the 190 extended from Croydon via Purley and Marl pit 
Lane to Old Coulsdon on Mondays to Saturdays in replacement. The 166 was withdrawn between Thornton Heath 
Pond and Streatham Common and diverted instead via Brigstock Road to Thornton Heath High Street. One 
further unrelated change that year occurred on 27th November when southbound journeys on the Sunday-only 59 
were diverted at Thornton Heath London Road via the west side of the roundabout and Willett Road to London 
Road . 

Trams and s1ngle-deck buses are passed by ST374 as it is attended to by a mechanic ou tside TC garage on the 166A soon after renumbering. 
E.G.P. Masrerman 



Page20 LBM53 

Above left: Another ex-Pickup Regent 
was STL556 from TC, seen here 
waiting at a famil1ar Thornton Heath 
Pond to work the renumbered 166 
E. G. P. Masterman 

Above: This Tilling-Stevens coach was 
operated by Grey Coaches and had 
obviously worked a JOurney on route 
59A from Camberwell where 1t is seen 
m the yard. 0. W. K. Jones 

RT1139 illustrates that the 166A was 
one of the earl1er routes to rece1ve new 
RTs. 0. W. K. Jones 

It is now time to record the various vehicle changes which affected our routes. The first few years after the war 
saw a period of great vehicle shortage, and reference to the schedules for 9th January 1946 shows the situation as it 
should have been. STs were very common. The hiring of coaches during peak hours between 1946 and 1949 
became the norm. However, most of the records of these coaches on our routes seem to be from Q on the 59 A. 
Four examples are known to have worked: XS4765 of Ansells, KP2053 and WX2142 from Grey Green, and 
JXL478 from Ban fields. Another common practice was to use single-deckers, including the CR class on peak hour 
journeys. Again, this has mainly been recorded for the 59A from Q. AK did have a number of these vehicles 
allocated but they seem to have been used on routes other than the 159, the 133 in particular. 

TC received new buses early, indeed a handful of the post-war STD class were operated for a short time, 
although as far as is known they were restricted to the 115 and 133. However, in late 1947 and early 1948 TC 
received some of the earliest RT3s for routes 115, 130 and 197, but on Saturdays five of them were available for the 
166 and 166A alongside 18 STs, the Monday to Friday staple for the routes being 16 STs. On 20th October 1948 the 
schedules show that the 59 was able to work a mixed allocation of 9 RTs and 8 STLs from TC in addition to 6 STLs 
from AK. The first of our routes to receive new buses in their own right were the 166 and 166A during the spring of 
1949. It was the period when a variety of RT types were being delivered and TC received Weymann and Saunders 
bodies examples in the 11xx range, Park Royal examples in the 9xx range, and Cravens bodied RT1447/ 8. This 
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allowed the 59 a full TC allocation on Sundays. However, at that time, TC also received new Bristol Ks 
LKH95/ 98/99 and 106-110, highbridge ECW bodied buses diverted from Eastern Counties, itself an ex-Tilling 
Company, specifically to help with the 68 and the 166/ A. These stayed for about a year being replaced by more 
RTs but are not known to have worked the 59 or 159 which, at that time, also used RTs from TC for the Sunday 
allocation. 

For such important routes, the 59 and 159 were quite late in receiving new buses. In 1949 the L T allocation from 
P on the 159 gave way to STLs. The new 190 received RTs straight away, TH supplying 18 on Mondays to Fridays, 
16 on Saturdays and 10 on Sundays. During the new year period of 1951, new buses started to flood into AK, not 
just for the 159 but also for the 133. The variety had gone, although a few of the last Saunders bodied examples in 
the 42xx range arrived, but most were of the standard Weymann and Park Royal bodies in the 19xx, 20xx, 39xx 
and 40xx batches. At this time, the 59 used six AK RTs on Sundays, and the 59A gained eight AK RTs on 
Saturdays. P received an allocation for the 159 but was less fortunate in receiving secondhand vehicles from 
throughout the fleet. Q saw 35 new RTLs for the 59A, a large batch ranging from RTL1176, 1178 and 1180 to 
1226, the remainder destined for the 68 family. From time to time Q had used the odd SRT on the 59A from its 
allocation for the 5, 5A and 42. 

HPW99 was a Bristol K5G in the 
Eastern Counties fleet and was 
loaned from January 1949 to January 
1950 more usually for the 68 than the 
166A. LTPS 

Below left: The standard Renown in 
post-war days is represented here by 
LT61 4 IPI when, according to the 
poster, radio reigned supreme in 
home entertainment. Malcolm 
E. Papes collection 

Below: In 1951 RT2215 still earned 
the economy reduced blind display. 
Alan B. Cross 



Page22 LBM53 

STL2467 from AK was one of a number 
of STLs wh1ch were used as extras 1n 
1951 to supplement the Fest1val of 
Bntam serv1ces. Spec1al blmds were 
produced and 1t IS seen here w1th 
RT2113 at Streatham Common. Geoff 
Morant 

Very detailed blinds are earned by 
RT3943 from TC on the 166 wh1ch only 
reached Streatham Common dunng 
1951 and 1952. Alan B. Cross 

RT234 at West Croydon Stat1on had 
been f1tted w1th a full blind display and 
shows the new five l1ne layout llstmg 
1ust f1ve po1nts, shortly before the route 
was Withdrawn. Alan B. Cross 
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Restricted blinds were carried by TC's 
RT169 as late as 25th May 1953, here 
showing details for the southern 
section of the 159. Already the small 
route stencil on the offside rear of the 
bus, found on only a handful of the 
earliest RT bodies, has fallen out of 
use. Alan B. Cross 

The full length of the 59 is worked by 
RT2001 one gloomy November Sunday 
in 1952. Alan B. Cross 

RTL428 exemplifies the standard 
Leylands from 0 and the aperture for 
the semaphore trafficators below the 
running number is notable. Malcolm E. 
?apes 
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RT4097 from P represents the continued Sunday working of part of 
the old 53 family to West Hampstead long after the main daily 
serv1ce had been diverted to Camden Town . Alan B. Cross 

LBM53 

A rare Sunday shot of the small TH allocation on the 59 between 
May 1952 and October 1954 is shown here by RT2078. Alan B. 
Cross 

RTs from the new garage on the site of the former Thornton Heath tram depot worked a five bus allocation on 
the 59 when the summer schedules were introduced on 18th May 1952. TC had worked single-handed during the 
winter period, and thus the TH allocation replaced an AK share which had last appeared in October 1951. As 
previously mentioned, the 166A had been withdrawn and the 166 diverted to Thornton Heath High Street, and at 
the same time the 166 was reallocated from TC to TH. Because of crew shortages, especially in north-west 
London, it became necessary in March 1954 to embark upon a programme of service reallocations. Cricklewood 
(W) gave up its duties on the 13 which were taken over by P who in turn lost its 18 buses on the 159 in favour of a 
similar number from Q. Curiously, for a couple of months, RTs were transferred into Q, an otherwise RTL 
garage, and this was one of the rare occasions that it worked AECs until changes during 1966. These RTs were 
soon replaced by RTLs however. October 1954 saw the introduction of winter schedules on the 59, and TH was 
withdrawn entirely, not to reappear until 1958. Instead, TC took its first foothold on the 190 using five RTs on 
Sundays together with six from TH, a state of affairs which continued until 2nd May 1956 when TH once again 
reigned supreme. 

On 2nd March 1955 the 166 (weekdays) and 59 (Sundays) were both extended a short way along Chipstead 
Valley Road to a new terminus outside the 'Midday Sun' just beyond the railway bridge. The schedules for 16th 
March saw route 166 return to TC. 

A Coronation Day working on the 
truncated 59 route is seen here 
worked by RT346 from W . Even an 
offside stencil plate was prov1ded . 
Alan B. Cross 



~ 
r 

l 

Page 25 

RT3394 had received an early roof box body upon overhaul in which had been fitted a particu larly unhelpfu l th ree line blind which did not become 
w1despread at that time. Peter J Relf 

The following year saw the withdrawal of the Sunday service on the !59. On 6th May a partial replacement took 
the form of a Sunday extension of the 190 through to Old Coulsdon, while the Green Lane-Parchmore Road­
Whitehorse Road section was covered by an extension of the 57 A to South Croydon Garage. This Sunday-only 
57 A had started the previous December as a renumbering of short journeys on the 57 which were diverted slightly 
away from the parent route to terminate at Streatham Garage. From the May 1956 extension the 57 A had far more 
in common with the 159 than the 57. It then covered the 159 road from South Croydon to Brixton where it 
branched off via Stockwell and Vauxhall to Victoria . It might more reasonably have been called !59 A, but its true 
parent (which lost its Sunday service entirely in 1958) left us with the legacy of the 57 A for another 22 years. At one 
time, when the 57 terminated at Thrale Hall Hotel, Streatham, the 57 and 57 A shared no common ground at all . 
The 57A was a BN operation at this time. TC lost its foothold on the 159 when the Sunday service was 
relinquished , though it still worked the entire 59, and this seems to be a suitable occasion to review the routes as at 
2nd May 1956: 

Number of buses 
Route Terminals Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 

57 A Victoria- South Croydon Garage BN RT 9 
59 West Hampstead- Chipstead Valley · Tc RT 23 
59 A West Hampstead- Addiscombe Q RTL 33 13 

AK RT 9 
!59 West Hampstead- Thornton Heath , extended AK RT 33 34 

Saturday p.m. to South Croydon Garage Q RTL 16 9 
166 Thornton Heath High Street- Chipstead Valley TC RT 9 12 
190 Thornton Heath High Street- Old Coulsdon TH RT 17 13 9 
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New schedules were introduced from 16th October 1957 which affected the 59 group of routes. Apart from the 
continuing Saturday service, the 59 A was withdrawn from Addiscombe, being replaced on Mondays to Fridays by 
an extension of the 50 via St. James Road. The Monday to Friday off-peak service on the 59A was cut back to 
Streatham Garage, but during peak hours it continued on to Thornton Heath Garage. BN took over the AK share 
of the 59A on Saturdays in order to make room at AK for the entire Saturday allocation on the 159. A 
rearrangement of Sunday work also took effect from this time when the 59 was strengthened to cover the 
withdrawal of Sunday route 153, and also the 109 on its Kennington to Horse Guards via Westminster leg. An 
allocation of 16 RTs from AK was added to that from TC, although the following year saw it split to allow TH a 
share. This Sunday change was virtually reversed from 30th November 1958 with the reintroduction of the 153 and 
the restoration of the 109 via Westminster in exchange for the withdrawal of the Blackfriars section. TH and AK 
both withdrew from the 59. 

Reductions to services on all days of the week had been introduced from Wednesday 26th November 1958 as 
part of the post bus strike cuts . From Saturday 29th November the 50 was introduced between Stockwell and 
Addiscombe, and this, coupled with an increase in frequency over the West Hampstead to Streatham section of the 
159, led to the withdrawal of the 59A on Saturdays, leaving a service only on Mondays to Fridays. Q RTLs 
returned to the 159 on Saturdays using buses which had previously worked on the 59A, while BN leaves the story 
for the time being. 

A comparison between the schedules for June and November 1958 demonstrates the extent of the cuts: 

Route 
57 A 
59 

59 A 

159 

166 
190 

Garage 
BN 
TC 
AK 
TH 
Q 
BN 
Q 
AK 
TC 
TH 

25th JUNE 1958 26th NOVEMBER 1958 
Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
RT 9 BN RT 9 
RT 24 TC RT 19 
RT 9 
RT 9 
RTL 
RT 
RTL 
RT 
RT 
RT 

26 

18 
33 
10 
15 

13 
6 

37 
12 
13 9 

Q RTL 26 

Q RTL 18 14 
AK RT 30 25 
TC RT 10 12 
TH RT 15 13 9 

One other change from 26th November was the diversion of the 59 A in St. John's Wood by way of Lisson Grove 
and Rossmore Road instead of St. John's Wood Road. 

A five point display was still 
carried by RT2884 but already 
the offs1de stencil has fallen 
out of use. Sunday trade IS 
far from bnsk. Malcolm E. 
Papes 
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On 1st October 1961 RT201BIAMI pulls out of autumnal Plumstead on route 153 in its final form to West Hampstead . Peter G. Mitchell 

From Sunday 17th May 1959 the 57 A gained an interesting summer-only projection via Victoria Street, 
Grosvenor Gardens, Grosvenor Place, Hyde Park Corner, Park Lane, Marble Arch, Oxford Street, Orchard 
Street, Baker Street, Park Road and Prince Albert Road to Camden Town, thus serving The Zoo, buses 
continuing on via Chalk Farm Road and route 24 to Hampstead Heath. This summer outing was reintroduced for 
the 1960 season, but only as far as Camden Town, and again to Camden Town in 1961. It was withdrawn on lith 
October that year never to reappear. 

From 8th June 1960 the 59 A took a step away from the rest of the family by turning left at Kennington, running 
via Harleyford Street, Oval, Vauxhall and Albert Embankment to rejoin its fellows at the south end of Lambeth 
Bridge. Summer bolstering on the 59 for the 1961 season saw the addition of three RTs from TH after a three-year 
absence of TH buses on that route. It proved to be the last appearance of TH buses on the 59 after 4th October 
1961 until the reintroduction of the route this year. 

The 'sixties was the decade of the traffic planners, and grandiose traffic management schemes. Somewhat 
surprisingly, the 59 family was not subjected to as many as might be imagined. The lengthiest was in Baker Street 
where northbound buses on all routes, including 59, 59 A, !53 and !59 were diverted from 26th November 1961 via 
Portman Square and Gloucester Place, southbound buses continuing along Park Road and Baker Street 
unaltered . 

From 14th August 1963 an increased Monday to Friday service was introduced to compensate partially for the 
withdrawal of the 276 (Brixton Garage to Finsbury Park, extended peak hours to Tottenham). Changes to the 39 
covered the northern section of the 276, but through central London the 59A and !59 were both strengthened 
between St. John's Wood and Brixton. Some of this increase was paid for by the withdrawal of the Thornton 
Heath peak hour projections on the 59 A, while on the !59 frequencies at both ends of the route were thinned 
during peak periods. Even so, the 59 A required an extra six RTLs from Q, and the !59 an extra four RTs from AK. 

The 276 was interesting in so far as it had almost been a revival of the original 59 link between Camden Town and 
Brixton. It had been introduced as part of Stage 10 of the Trolleybus Conversion Programme on 26th April1961, 
but as a new facility. Always using RMs from HT, (and often the haunt of silver RM664), the 276 south of Camden 
Town followed the 53 routeing to County Hall, then running via Lambeth Palace Road, Albert Embankment and 
Vauxhall to parallel the 59 A to Streatham Telford A venue. 
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The 'Silver Lady', RM664, from HT is 
seen here passing through Lambeth 
on the relatively short-lived route 276 
on 6th October 1961. Gerald Mead 

During the late summer of 1963, RTLs and RTWs were rendered surplus by the advancing RM conversion 
programme. These were allocated to BN in place of some RTs, and were initially allocated to the 95 and 95A, and 
later the 109 when more became available. The RTLs appeared on all routes including the Sunday 57 A, and soon 
after, the RTWs tended to work the 57 A exclusively right up until the end of RTW operation in May 1966. 

New schedules from 29th January 1964 affected many routes in south London, but it was only at weekends that 
the 59 family was revised. From Saturday 1st February the Lisson Grove/Rossmore Road section gained buses at 
weekends to match the Monday to Friday only cover provided by the 59A. On Saturdays, part of a generally 
increased !59 was diverted this way with ten of Q's RTLs using the number 159A. These 159A journeys were 
operated every 15 minutes between West Hampstead West End Green and Streatham Garage only, with early 
morning and late evening projections as far as Thornton Heath Clock Tower. A five minute headway was 
maintained over the main part of the !59 route costing an additional four buses on Saturdays. Further extra cost 
was avoided by localizing half the projections to South Croydon Garage to run from Brixton only, the remainder 
coming through from West Hampstead. Another benefit was that the localized section provided a morning 159 
service through Croydon which had previously been restricted to the busier shopping periods. On Sundays, the 59 
was rerouted via Lisson Grove and Rossmore Road, the !53 continuing to provide the service along St. John's 
Wood Road. 

A Metro-Cammell bodied RTL588 
was transferred to BN on 7th July 
1963 and wa1ts here at Victoria before 
working through to South Croydon 
on the 57 A. Gerald Mead 
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BN's RTLBB6 on the 50 which took over the 
Addiscombe leg of the 59A is seen here 
working a peak hour journey through from 
Victoria Embankment. W. Legg 

RT4464 ITHl rests in the typical south 
London Victorian suburb at Thornton 
Heath shortly before these duties were 
transfered to TC. W. Legg 

RTL764 from 0 is seen working the 
Saturday 159A through Kennington during 
September 1965. Gerald Mead 
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A Sunday trip from Croydon on the 57 A is worked here by 
RTW170 from BN. The 57 A was to become one of the last hosts to 
these wider buses. Colin Stannard 

LBM53 

The small allocation of narrower Leylands on the Saturday 159s is 
represented here at Kennington by BNs RTL867 on 31st July 1965. 
Gerald Mead 

Further north, a long term diversion began on 2nd February 1964 for the duration of bridge repairs. The bridge 
crossing the main line from Euston at Abbey Road was being rebuilt, and while this was in progress the 59 group 
and the 153 were rerouted northbound via Alexandra Road, Loudoun Road and Belsize Road. The southbound 
diversion was the reverse except that Boundary Road was used to rejoin Abbey Road instead of Alexandra Road . 
The use of Boundary Road was notable in so far as it had been used previously by buses in the opposite direction 
for a time during 1960 owing to roadworks. Normal line of route was restored after 22nd May 1964. Another more 
permanent diversion had taken place from 26th April 1960 when the 59 was diverted intermediately at Brixton 
Road via Effra Road and Matthews Road to Brixton Hill. Then on 2nd June 1963 buses were diverted at Regent 
Street via Hanover Street, Hanover Square (east side), Holies Street and Cavendish Square (clockwise) to 
Wigmore Street. 

In July 1964 an exchange of allocations between Camberwell, New Cross and Stockwell, mainly involving routes 
163 and 168, caused an imbalance of work at Q on Saturdays. TH had acquired extra work at the expense of BN, 
and so from 4th July BN took over Q's Saturday participation on the 159. RTLs were used and, although RTWs 
were also at BN, no record exists of one working on the 159. 

November 1964 saw the conversion of the 130 group of routes to RM from TC, and enough spares were 
available on Sundays for the conversion of the 59 from 22nd November. The RTLs were being withdrawn rapidly 
during 1965 and 1966, and their removal from BN caused the entire Saturday allocation on the 159 to become RT. 
Through the summer of 1966, the RTLs at Q were also replaced by RTs which affected the 59A and the 159 
(Monday to Friday) and 159A (Saturday), the standard type becoming the RT. 

RM1182 from TC has had 'Lambeth 
Bridge' deleted from the blind to take 
account of the rerouteing via 
Westminster Bndge dunng February 
1966. Colin Stannard 
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From Sunday 23rd January 1966, six buses were added to the 59 schedule which received a more intensive 
frequency over the West Hampstead to South Croydon Garage section. Some of the increase came from savings on 
the Chipstead Valley service which was widened from a 15 to a 20 minute frequency. The reason for the 
strengthening was so that the Sunday service on the 109 could be withdrawn along with the 133. To compensate for 
the 109 north of Kennington, the 59 was rerouted via Lambeth North and Westminster Bridge. In addition, the 
loss of the 153 meant that no buses ran via St. John's Wood Road on Sundays. Then, on Sunday 15th May 1966 
schedule changes were introduced which saw off the last RTWs at BN the previous night. Their place was taken on 
the 95/ A by RMs which were also used on the 57 A on Sundays. The odd RT still popped up however, since BN's 
full Sunday RM allocation was only one short of the weekday maximum total. A decrease in frequency had taken 
effect on weekdays from 16th May saving five buses on the 59 A and eight on the 159. The state of play for August 
1966 was as follows: 

Number of buses 
Route Terminals Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
57 A Victoria Station -South Croydon Garage BN RM 9 
59 West Hampstead - Lisson Grove - Chipstead Valley TC RM 21 
59 A West Hampstead- Lisson Grove- Streatham Garage Q RT 26 

159 West Hampstead- St. John's Wood- Streatham BN RT 10 
Garage, extended Saturdays to South Croydon Q RT 16 
Garage AK RT 30 19 

159A West Hampstead - Lisson Grove - Thornton Heath Q RT 9 
166 Thornton Heath High Street - Chipstead Valley TC RT 9 II 
190 Thornton Heath High Street- Old Coulsdon TH RT 12 12 5 

An extensive programme of route alterations came to fruition on New Year's Eve 1966. However, few major 
changes affected the routes in our story, except the withdrawal of the 234 on Sunday causing one third of the 57 A 
service to be projected to Selsdon via Purley and Riddlesdown. No increase in vehicles was necessary as the entire 
service was cut back at the northern end from Victoria to Stockwell Station. In addition, a reallocation of four 
buses from BN to AK resulted in the route having a joint RT/ RM allocation. Work at BN decreased in proportion 
to the weekday reduction. A greater part of the Saturday operation on the 159 was now undertaken by BN (seven 
more buses) which made up for that garage's losses on the 109. The 190 swapped its Monday to Saturday 
allocation into TC leaving TH just five buses on Sundays only. 

During the years of the Reshaping Plan changes were frequent. Longer buses became available for use on the 59 
early in 1968 when 72-seater RMLs were allocated to TC for the 130 group. Sufficient spares enabled an allocation 
of 21 RMLs on Sundays. From 1st December 1968 the AK allocation was removed from the 57 A with BN resuming 
full control once again. By now, however, a reduced weekday RM requirement meant that not enough were 

RT3456 had helped to replace the RTLs at BN. but the garage had 
very few Saturdays left to work the 159 when this view was taken 
in Streatham on 7th June 1969. Colin Stannard 

The replacement of RTLs by RTs at 0 in 1966 is represented by 
RT4251 but by the time this shot was taken on 30th June 1969 the 
last roof box bodies by Saunders were making their swansong too . 
Colin Stannard 
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Here at Streatham BN's 
RM1304 is seen working 
short to South Croydon on 
20th October 1968, only one 
bus in three running through 
to Selsdon. Colin Stannard 

available on Sundays and so an RT element crept in. New schedules from 15th February 1969 brought an evening 
adjustment to the 59A whereby it was extended in West Hampstead from Sherriff Road to West End Green. 
Changes on 19th July saw further adjustments with the Saturday-only AK share on the 50 moving into BN to join 
the Monday to Friday allocation, while AK took over BN's Saturday involvement on the 159. Route 57 A was 
withdrawn south of Croydon Garage again from 20th July upon the introduction of a new RF omo route 
numbered 234B running between South Croydon Garage and Selsdon, and the allocation from BN now became 7 
RTs. 

From 26th October 1969, after reductions on the 49, some Sunday work on the 59 was drafted across from TC to 
AK. As no RMs were available at AK, their contribution to the route became 6 RTs . It was not such a strange 
revival as might at first be thought for at Bank Holidays when extra buses were needed TC had used RTs also. The 
59 honeymoon with RTs ended on 13th June 1970 when RMs moved into AK and Q to take over the 159, the !59 A 
also using them from Q on Saturdays, and the 59 from AK on Sundays. The Q RMs came mainly from Wand WN 
while those at AK were from FY, ON and SE, all cascaded as a result of omo conversions. The 59 A remained RT 
operated as did the 57 A. The 166 and 190 which had remained largely unaltered through the 'sixties also continued 
with RTs, although from 18th Aprill970 TC had found enough spare RMs on Saturdays to use them on the 190. 

A major programme of route changes including two omo conversions, twice deferred, eventually became 
effective on 31st October 1970 when route 166 was converted to omo using SMSs from the range allocated to 
TC-SMS237, 238, 241-258. The 166 was withdrawn between Croydon and Thornton Heath and diverted via the 
former 194A to Shirley Monks Orchard Road, and further extended on Mondays to Fridays to Beckenham 
Junction. On Sundays, a new SMS omo route 166A was introduced running from Chipstead Valley via the 59 
routeing to Thornton Heath Garage. Also on Sundays, the 190 was withdrawn, thus losing its TH allocation , and 
the 59 was switched from Chipstead Valley to run to Old Coulsdon instead . Additionally, in central London, the 
59 was rerouted via Oxford Street and Orchard Street leaving Wigmore Street deprived of Sunday buses. The 190 
itself had to wait until 20th November 1971 before ten RMs became available to remove the weekday RTs from the 
route. 

All buses on the !59 were rerouted via Rossmore Road and Lisson Grove at all times, thus leaving St. John's 
Wood Road unserved after 57 years. The Saturday number !59 A was thus no longer required, and Q buses joined 
their AK counterparts on the plain 159 on Saturdays. New Monday to Friday schedules shifted the bulk of the 
work from the 59A to the !59 at this time, leaving just a skeleton peak hour facility on the 59A running from 
Brixton Garage to Lambeth Bridge, buses turning by means of Parliament Square. The morning peak service ran a 
little further on to Charing Cross. The service eventually received RMs after the 95 was converted to omo on 2nd 
January 1971, an allocation of just five RMs being sufficient, compared to the 64 RMs on the 159 on Mondays to 
Fridays. The remains of the 59A were finally withdrawn after lOth March 1972. The 57 A left the road to Croydon 
to the 68 when it was curtailed at Thornton Heath High Street from 18th April 1971, saving two RTs. 
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RT587 from 0 swings into Waterloo 
Place on 16th May 1970 although the 
vehicle had entered service as long ago 
as 1948 at TL with a roof box body. 
Colin Stannard 

The longer Routemasters came to the 
59 on Sundays when spares were 
available from the 130 family. On 24th 
May 1970 the extra capacity on 
RML2757 seemed unnecessary. Colin 
Stannard 

Below left: RT3281 shows the 190 to be 
the preserve of TC, TH retaining only 
the Sunday duties since 31st December 
1966. Gerald Mead 

Below: RM69 from 0 turns left from 
Parliament Square into Parliament 
Street on the morning peak hour run of 
the 59A to Charing Cross. Colin 
Stannard 



Page34 LBM53 

Turning into George Street , East Croydon SMS245 is one of the unpopular and often overcrowded fleet allocated to the 166. Colin Stannard l 
When the main part of Oxford Street became a bus and taxi thoroughfare in 1972, other traffic was diverted 

away from Wigmore Street. Initially, westbound buses on the 159 were rerouted from Wigmore Street into I 
Orchard Street, Oxford Street and Portman Street. The Wigmore Street routeing was finally abandoned from 27th 
November 1972 when the 159 was revised to run the full length of Oxford Street in both directions as route 59. 

It did not take long for the gross overcrowding of TC's SMSs on the 166 at busy times to make the news, and 
thus from 6th January 1973 the 166 and 166A were converted to double-deck operation using DMS490-508. From 
the new schedules introduced in May of that year, the allocation on the 59 was altered to become 11 RMs from AK 
and 10 RMLs from TC. 

DMS508 was one of the 
original batch allocated to 
TC to replace the 
unreliable SMSs, 
although Sunday traffic 
on the 166A at Chipstead 
Valley seems to be very 
light. Colin Stannard 
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A most interesting proposal failed to reach fruition during 1974. Plans to convert the 155 to omo from AL 
would have caused a number of reallocations of other services. The 49 was planned to go to BN while in exchange 
AK was to take over the 57 A on Sundays, at the same time being converted to one-man operation using SMSs 
released by the transfer of the 249 to AL. This revised 57 A would have been renumbered 159 (!) at the same time, 
but this was not to be. 1974 did however witness a small alteration to the 57 A at Brixton when, from 19th May, the 
eastern end of Stockwell Road became one-way northbound, and southbound buses had to divert via Stockwell 
Park Walk and Brixton Road. 

The 130 group of routes at TC was converted to crew DM operation from 1st March 1975. As the RMLs left TC, 
its share of the 59 reverted to RM. However, plenty of spare DMs were spare at TC on Sundays, and from 30th 
November 1975 they made their debut on the route. DMs had appeared on the 57 A in place of RTs from 23rd 
March 1975 when the 133 received its Fleetlines. Since the conversion of the 159 to RM in 1970, RTs had continued 
to put in odd appearances including one scheduled cross-linking from another route. This ceased when Q lost its 
last RTs in August 1975 while those left at AK left in December. A couple of RTs returned during 1976 and 1977 
during the RM shortages, and from 22nd September 1975 the entire allocation on the 190 was converted to Leyland 
PD3s on hire from Southend Transport. Their blue and cream livery enlivened the streets of Croydon until 28th 
February of the next year when the RMs returned once again. 

The advent of Primary and Secondary schedules was an attempt to improve the reliability of some services 
during the period of staff and vehicle shortages, and it was planned that where shortages occurred, these cuts 
would be made on the secondary schedule leaving the primary schedule to provide a reliable, albeit less frequent, 
basic service. These schedules were introduced to route 159 during October 1976 affecting just five AK buses. 
However, more important were the effects of Busplan on 28th October 1978 which aimed to simplify route 
patterns and remove weekend routeing anomalies. Both the Sunday-only routes, the 57 A and 59, were withdrawn, 

Two of the all -over 
advertisement buses on 
the 59/159 were RM2140 
for Bertorelli Ice Creams, 
seen here at Gloucester 
Place, and RM1676, a 
short-lived advertisement 
for English Apples & 
Pears, caught here 
travelling along Whitehall 
on 9th October 1975 at a 
time when these 
colourful buses were 
falling out of favour . 
J. G. S. Smith/ Cohn 
Stannard 
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DM1804 does not prove the case 
for large capacity buses on the 59 
m ItS altered form to Old 
Coulsdon dunng January 1976. 
Malcolm E. Papes 

The loan of PD3s from Southend 
Transport was a desperate 
al!empt to overcome bus 
shortages. but th1s example taken 
on 20th February 1976 shows 
how badly the RM blinds fltled. 
Alan B. Cross 

The Saturday shoppmg extens1on 
of the 159 to South Croydon 1s 
shown here at Kenn1ngton by 
R M 1171 from AK on 22nd May 
1976. Malcolm E. Papes 
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and to take their place a Sunday service was introduced on route 159 between West Hampstead West End Green 
and Thornton Heath High Street, not Clock Tower as on Mondays to Saturdays. This Sunday service ran via 
Lambeth North and Westminster Bridge to serve St. Thomas's Hospital, rather than via Lambeth Bridge, and 
slip boards were preferred (but rarely used) to the more logical use of a suffix route number. At the same time, the 
busy Saturday extension during shopping hours of the 159 to South Croydon was curtailed at Thornton Heath 
Clock Tower. Returning to Sundays, part of the southern end of the 59 was replaced by the introduction of route 
109 on that day between Brixton Gresham Road and South Croydon, while the 190 was also re-introduced on that 
day between Thornton Heath High Street and Old Coulsdon. 

Changes on 4th September 1982 involved reductions in services following the House of Lords' judgement on the 
'Fares Fair' scheme, and reallocations as a result caused BN to return to the 159 on Sundays at the expense of Q. 
On Saturdays, Q pulled out of the route altogether leaving AK to cope single-handed. From 23rd April1983 route 
190 was converted to omo on Sundays using the B20 DMSs which were now replacing the standard ones at TC and 
TH. Throughout 1984, the 190 also saw the use of Ds as crew vehicles substituting for RMs, and inevitably the 
route was converted to one-man operation on Mondays to Saturdays from 2nd February 1985. 

Streatham Garage was closed for rebuilding on 27th October 1984 causing some reallocation of services, the 159 
moving to Q where allocations on the 3, 45 and 68 were reduced or even moved out altogether. 

One of the SRMs allocated to the 
59. SRM23. is seen here turning 
into Rossmore Road on 26th June 
1977 advertising Tate & Lyle. 
Colin Stannard 

One of the Shillibeer buses 
allocated to the 159. RM2193. 
advertised Oldham Batteries. seen 
here heading for Thorton Heath 
High Street one Sunday in 
Whitehall. Colin Fradd 
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OMs took over from RTs on the 57 A 1n 

the route's latter days between 
Stockwell and Thornton Heath, and 
DM2584 passes through Streatham one 
summer Sunday. Roger Hyslop 

The stnking chocolate and cream livery 
of 02629 brought colour to a number 
of Croydon routes mclud1ng the 166. It 
is seen here m Addiscombe Road on 1ts 
way to Sh~rley . Colin Stannard 

~ V/*l»f'o&s 
The Sunday operation of BN - on 
the 159 occurred only during the·w mter 
months, and here in V'Jhitehall in l;lf] 5'2-4-~5 
typ1cal ly d1smal cond1t1ons i li i'ii s ~ 
for West Hampstead. Malcolm E. 
Papes 
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DMS2418 from TH arrives at its Brixton 
terminus on the revived route 59 on 
20th February 1985, and has the benefit 
of the full intermediate blind display. 
Malcolm E. Papes 

The route number 59 returned to the area on 2nd February 1985 when it was used for an omo service, worked by 
D-types from TH . The main daily service was between Bri~ton Station and Purley via the 109, while on Sundays 
buses continue on to Chipstead Valley as a replacement for the Sunday-only 166A. Certain early Sunday morning 
journeys on the 59 took over the similar Sunday workings on the 109 to Victoria Embankment. BN gained an 
allocation on the 159 on Saturdays of three RMs, and as BN was replacing some of its RMs on the 109 and 133 with 
D-types, a few of these became available for use on the 159 at weekends. 

So today, the 166 and 190 are worked by DMSs from TC, although from 14th February 1985 Ms started to take 
over from the DMSs. No doubt Ms will become the staple for the 59 from THin due course, especially as it looks 
unlikely that many of the D-types will receive a full overhaul as originally intended. BN's small allocation of Ds on 
the 159 was not to last long, but new Ms into BN do carry displays for the 159 and perhaps we shall see odd 
appearances in due course. Q Titan blinds do carry 159 but to date there have been no reports of such a working. 

A summary of the schedules at 27th April 1985 is as follows: 

Number of buses 
Route Terminals Garage Type Mon-Fri Sat Sun 
59 Brixton Station - Pur ley, extended Sundays to TH D 10 10 8 

Chipstead Valley, early Sunday journeys to 
Victoria Embankment 

!59 West Hampstead- Thornton Heath Q RM 51 20 12 
BN RM 4 4 

166 Chipstead Valley- Shirley, extended Mon-Fri to TC DIM 10 7 
Beckenham Junction 

190 Old Coulsdon - Thornton Heath High Street TC DIM 8 13 3 

An interesting scheme proposed in 1981 foresaw radical changes to the Brighton Road routes. The plan was for 
the 59 to have become a daily RM route between West Hampstead and Streatham Garage with a Monday to Friday 
extension to Thornton Heath Garage. This service would have replaced most of the 109 which would have been 
reduced to a Monday to Friday only route between Victoria Embankment and Streatham, with peak hour journeys 
running on to Thornton Heath Garage. The 159 would also have been reduced to Monday to Fridays only between 
Thornton Heath Clock Tower and Oxford Circus with peak hour journeys to West Hampstead. A daily 
replacement for Green Lane would have taken the form of a new 50A reviving the old 57 A to Croydon. Routes 166 
and 166A would also have been abandoned in favour of a bifurcation of the 190 and changes to the 1948. The 
night service on the 109 would have been renumbered N59. However, none of this was to be. 

Over the years many different garages have supplied buses for the 59 group, and during the 1922-24 period a 
number of supplementary schedules were in force from CF, B, J and AL to chase off the independents. 
Coronation Day 1953 saw some unusual working when the route was split into two sections: West Hampstead to 
Baker Street Station, and Lambeth North to Chipstead Valley. Cricklewood (W) provided RTs for the northern 
section while TH joined TC to help with the southern part, the usual Sunday pattern. 
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M1167 was one of the first three 
Metrobuses to be allocated to TC 
which first appeared on the 130 group 
of routes. It is seen here in Croydon on 
18th April 1985 bound for Chipstead 
Valley on the 166. Paul Hulyer 

DS1933 returned to service dunng 
1985, still carrymg its 1933-style livery 
to commemorate the 50th anniversary 
of L T, and is often to be found on the 
new 59 as seen here at Thorton Heath 
Pond. Paul Hulyer 

LBM53 

A number of interesting vehicles have run on the 59 group of services over recent years including several all-over 
advertisement RMs-RM952 for Dinky Toys/Meccano, RM906 for Everton Mints, RM2140 for Bertorelli Ice 
Creams, and RM1676 for English Apples and Pears. Silver Jubilee SRMs worked on the 59 and !59 during 1977 
including SRMs 6, 9, 15, 19, 20 and 21, and these were followed in 1979 by Shillibeer RMs 2186 and 2193 , and in 
1981 by 'Royal Wedding' RM219. Some ' showbuses' were adopted by TC such as RMIOOO and DMIOOO, and by 
AK as RMs 1376 and 1442, and RM14 from Q. With the return to service of DS1933 during 1985, this also 
appeared on the 59. D2629 from TC sponsored by Croydon Corporation and repainted into a chocolate and cream 
livery was nicknamed locally 'the chocolate box'. The opportunity was missed in 1983 however to repaint a bus in 
Tilling' s livery which would have been most appropriate as Tilling last saw service fifty years earlier until the LPTB 
takeover on 1st October 1933. For a while, when TC had LSs for the 234A, these did make rare appearances on the 
166 although since February 1984 that was no longer possible. 

The two articles covering the 59 family were based upon notes compiled by George Robbins and members of the 
London Historical Research Group for a study tour of the routes on Tuesday 13th June 1967. The first part was 
expanded with additional material supplied by the late Albert McCall, while part 2 was expanded and updated with 
the aid particularly of notes from Colin Stannard. 

Acknowledgement is due to the LHRG of the Omnibus Society, and especially to Brian Bunker for the checking 
of dates and details. Use has been made of the manuscript of a forthcoming book to be published by Capital 
Transport on the operation by Thomas Tilling Ltd in London and this will include details not only of the 
development of routes from Croydon garage but also from Bromley and Catford garages. 

Bibliography 
'Southbound from Croydon' by J .T. King and A.G. Newman. Omnibus Society/ Bourne Society 1965. 
'East Surrey' by 'Bell Street'. H.J . Publications 1974. 
'Study Tour of London Bus Route 59' by G.J . Robbins et al. LHRG 1967. 

Correction to Part One 
Page 25- Photo caption: Tram 1142 is an LCC variety, not Croydon Tramways. 
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Odd Men Out Then and Now 

Over recent months, RMLs have 
become 1ncreasmgly common on the 
21 from New Cross and the 77 A from 
Stockwell. Both routes are due for 
omo conversion later th1s year and 
the days of such workmgs are now 
numbered . Here m Eltham R M L2577 
makes a weekday tnp to Moorgate 
on the 21, while RML2704 IS seen at 
Euston on the 77 A to K1ng's Cross. 
Colin Srannard! Sreve Fennell 
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Until 27th April 1985 occasional peak hour workings on the 2 were often covered by Metrobuses from GM, such as M 1044 caught here at Terminus 
Place Victoria on 12th April, but with the loss of the GM allocation on the 2, RM shortages are now eased by the use of Ms on the 11 as shown by 
M1046 in Buckingham Palace Road. Colin Fradd 

Metro buses also reach Victoria in the form 
of odd workings on route 16, and before 
that route's extension to the Tesco 
Superstore at Neasden, M1208 is seen here 
at Grosvenor Gardens heading for the old 
terminus at Neasden Shopp1ng Centre. 
Colin Fradd 

Although Uxbridge garage does put the 
occasional M on the 207, such appearances 
from HL are believed to be rare, and here 
we see M228 taken on 7th February 
heading for Hanwell Broadway. Michael 
Dryhurst 
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The use of LSs on the 202 is far from 
unusual, indeed the scheduled 
Metrobuses seem to be more 
uncommon, but for completeness we 
illustrate here near Hounslow West 
the use of LS24 heading for 
Heathrow last summer. Colin 
Stannard 

Another route to see the use of LSs, 
much to the consternation of both 
the crews and passengers, 1s the 
busy 131, and caught here at 
Norbiton last year is LS284 on its way 
to Wimbledon. Colin Stannard 

More rare now is the sighting of LSs 
on the 222, but back in 1981 when 
there was a larger allocation of LSs at 
Uxbridge these vehicles did appear. 
such as LS422 caught on its way to 
Hounslow at West Drayton. Colin 
Stannard 



Capital Transport 

MAJOR BUS 
OPERATORS 

SOUTH EAST ENGLAND 

Major Bus Operators 
South East England 
Fourth edition 
The new edition of the South East volume in the 
Major Bus Operators series is now available. 
Correct to 1st February 1985, it includes full 
details of the fleets of Brighton, Eastbourne, 
East Kent, Hastings & District, London Country, 
Maidstone Borough Council, M&D, National 
London, Portsmouth and Southdown. 

112pp, 8Y..ins by 5Ysins, £3·95 

AVAILABLE NOW 

Interesting Independents 
The Midlands 
With Fleet Lists 
Following the 'pilot' volume of Interesting 
Independents published last year and covering 
Southern England, this enlarged book covers 
independents who use buses on stage carriage 
work in the Midlands. All the big names are here 
of course, such as Stevensons, Green Bus, 
South Notts, Silver Service and Barton, plus a 
host of interesting smaller operators. Full fleet 
lists are included for each operator covered, as 
at May 1985. 

104pp, 8Y..ins by 5Ysins, £4·50. 

AVAILABLE NOW 

Capital Transport books are available from larger branches of W.H. Smith, transport bookshops and 
societies or post-free direct from 38 Long Elmes, Harrow Weald, Middlesex HA3 5JL. 

They may also be ordered through Giro quoting our account number 318 5559. 



£1.70 


